ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE JUDI CI ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 20, 2015
1:05 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Gabrielle LeDoux, Chair
Representative Wes Keller, Vice Chair
Representative Charisse MIlett
Representative Matt C aman
Representati ve Max G uenberg
Representati ve Neal Foster

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Representative Bob Lynn
COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 83

"An  Act relating to «collecting information about civil
litigation by the Alaska Judicial Council; repealing Rule
41(a)(3), Alaska Rules of GCivil Procedure, and Rules 511(c) and
(e), Alaska Rules of Appellate Procedure; and providing for an
effective date.”

- HEARD & HELD
HOUSE BI LL NO. 15
"An Act relating to credits toward a sentence of inprisonnment
and to good tine deductions.”

- HEARD & HELD
HOUSE BI LL NO. 79
"An  Act relating to controlled substances; relating to
marijuana; relating to driving notor vehicles when there is an
open marijuana container; and providing for an effective date."

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 83

SHORT TITLE: JUDI CI AL COUNCI L: CIVIL LITIGATION | NFO

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -1- February 20, 2015



SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) LEDOUX

01/ 28/ 15 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/ 28/ 15 (H) JUD

02/ 06/ 15 (H) JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

02/ 06/ 15 (H <Bi |l Hearing Cancel ed>

02/ 13/ 15 (H) JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

02/ 13/ 15 (H <Bi || Hearing Cancel ed>

02/ 20/ 15 (H) JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120
BILL: HB 15

SHORT TI TLE: CREDI TS FOR Tl ME SERVED/ GOCD TI ME

SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) W LSON

01/ 21/ 15 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 9/ 15

01/ 21/ 15 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 21/ 15 (H STA, FIN

01/ 23/ 15 (H STA REFERRAL REMOVED

01/ 23/ 15 (H JUD REFERRAL ADDED BEFORE FI N
02/ 18/ 15 (H Bl LL REPRI NTED 2/ 16/ 15

02/ 20/ 15 (H JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

W TNESS REG STER

CLARK BI CKFORD, St aff
Representative Gabriell e LeDoux
Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 83 on behalf of Representative

LeDoux, prine sponsor.

SUZANNE DI Pl ETRO, Executive Director

Al aska Judi cial System

Al aska Court System

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During the hearing
guesti ons.

NANCY MEADE, Ceneral Counse

Central Ofice

Ofice of the Adm nistrative Director
Al aska Court System

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During the hearing
guesti ons.
HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 2-

on HB 83, answered

on HB 83, answered

February 20, 2015



BREWSTER JAM ESQON, Attorney

Lane Powel | LLC

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: During the hearing on HB 83, testified in
support.

KEN JACOBUS, Attorney

Law O fices of Kenneth P. Jacobus

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During the hearing on HB 83, testified in
support.

SARAH BADTEN, Att orney

G oh, Eggers, LLC

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During the hearing on HB 83, testified in
support.

Bl LLY HOUSER, Probation Oficer

Di vision of Probation and Parol e

Department of Corrections

Pal mer, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During the hearing on HB 15, testified
regardi ng his concerns.

DOUGLAS MOCDY, Deputy Public Def ender

Crimnal Division

Central O fice

Publ i ¢ Def ender Agency

Department of Adm nistration

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: During the hearing on HB 15, testified in
support.

Rl CK SVOBODNY, Deputy Attorney Ceneral

Central Ofice

Crimnal Division

Depart nent of Law

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During the hearing on HB 15, testified
regardi ng the concerns of the Departnent of Law.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1: 05: 00 PM

HOUSE JUD COWM TTEE - 3- February 20, 2015



CHAIR GABRIELLE LEDOUX <called the House Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:05 p.m Representatives Foster,
Mllett, daman, Guenberg, Keller, and LeDoux were present at
the call to order.

HB 83-JUDICI AL COUNCIL: ClIVIL LITIGATI ON | NFO

1: 06: 10 PM

CHAI R LEDOUX announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO. 83 "An Act relating to collecting information
about civil litigation by the Al aska Judicial Council; repealing
Rul e 41(a)(3), Alaska Rules of Civil Procedure, and Rules 511(c)
and (e), Alaska Rules of Appellate Procedure; and providing for
an effective date.™

1: 06: 28 PM
The conmmittee took a brief at ease.

CHAI R LEDOUX passed the gavel to Vice Chair Keller for the
hearing on HB 83.

1: 06: 50 PM

CLARK BI CKFORD, Staff, Representative Gabrielle LeDoux, Al aska
State Legislature, offered that the bill repeals a 1997 |aw
relating to the <collection of information regarding civil
litigation by the Alaska Judicial GCouncil, which is a wdely
forgotten and ignored practice anongst the legal community. For
instance, he explained, from 2001-2010 only 13 percent of
l[itigation reports have been filed. He offered that the
majority of the legal community and the Al aska Judicial Counci

(AHC) is in favor of this repeal and urged support for the bill.

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN asked whether there was a tinme of greater
conpl i ance.

MR. BICKFORD, in response to Representative C aman, stated there
was nore conpliance from the legal comunity at the time of
passage, and gradually that conpliance dropped dramatically. He
pointed out that during the above-nentioned nine years only
20,000 of the 177,000 open civil cases were report ed.

1: 09: 23 PM

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -4- February 20, 2015



VICE CHAIR KELLER assuned there was legislative intent for the
original bill and asked for the |egislative history.

1: 09: 50 PM

MR. BICKFORD said the difficulty of |lawers not was unforeseen
and the AJC does not have resources to [encourage attorneys] to
report every 177,000 cases.

1:10: 50 PM

VI CE CHAI R KELLER questi oned why years have passed w t hout data,
as it is a law

1:11:11 PM

SUZANNE DI PI ETRO, Executive Director, Alaska Judicial System
Al aska Court System advised that the |law was passed as part of
tort reform legislation in 1997. The itenms in the legislation
were recommended by the Governor's Advisory Task Force on G vi

Justice Reform and, she noted, this task force was formed after
Governor Tony Knowl es vetoed tort reform legislation that had
passed in 1995-1996. The task force made reconmendations to
improve the efficiency and fairness of civil [litigation. She
remarked that during the course of deliberation it becane clear
to the task force there was no data regarding the size and
anount of an average jury verdict, average settlenent, or the

percentage of times a plaintiff won versus a defendant. When
the legislation passed, the provision intended that the Al aska
Judicial Council (AJC) would collect information and provide

reports to the legislature so it could nonitor the effects of
what it had done in the tort reformlegislation, she explained.

The AJC issued three reports, a prelimnary report soon after
the statute was passed wth sone information, and when
information was rolling it issued the 2001 report which included
the anmobunt of the average settlenment, and civil litigation data
i nformation. Unfortunately, she related, due to the difficulty
in obtaining data, the AJC reviewed court case files and pulled
t he nunbers of the cases it should have received reports.

1: 13: 39 PM

M5. DI PIETRO stated that AJC realized only a fraction of reports
had been filed and sent letters to all of the parties that
should have filed information. Through that |aborious process
the AJC was able to achieve approximately a 50 percent response

HOUSE JUD COWM TTEE - 5- February 20, 2015



rate. She described it as the highest response rate it had
recei ved and, she opined, it was enough information to put out a
report that was not msleading. In subsequent years, she noted,
the reporting rate fell and for exanple, in FY13 court system
data showed 6,113 cases that should have received a settlenent
report and received 1,086 reports, only 18 percent. She opi ned
that it would not have been responsible to publish a report at
18 percent data.

1:16: 10 PM

VI CE CHAI R KELLER remarked that he just received the 2001 Al aska
Judicial Council report and has not had an opportunity to
eval uate the data. He questioned whether there is a valid

reason to "get rid of" a law wherein conpliance is difficult.

IVS. DIPIETRO offered that the AJC has a constitutiona
responsibility to conduct studies to inprove the adm nistration
of justice for the |egislature. She advised she is ready to
conduct any study the legislature would |ike conducted, such as
the civil case data information

1:17:51 PM

VICE CHAIR KELLER pointed to the inplication that the data is
not valuable as the AJC is bringing this bill forward and
supporting it. He opined that his first inpression is the

information is very valuable and offered concern that the |ack
of information to the legislature is due to non-conpliance.

M5. DI Pl ETRO responded in the affirmative, that the AJC has only
received 18 percent with a lot of information outstanding. " As
a representative of the AJC, I'm not really taking a position
one way or the other," she said, and that she is testifying to
advise of the difficulties, and for the commttee to direct the
AJC.

1:19: 00 PM

CHAIR LEDOUX clarified that this bill was not put forth through
the Al aska Judicial Council but was suggested to her by a nunber
of individuals fromthe private bar. She questioned the anount
of nmoney would be necessary to put teeth into the law requiring
parties to report.

1:19: 48 PM

HOUSE JUD COWM TTEE - 6- February 20, 2015



M5. DI PIETRO responded that she could work sonething up, and
reiterated that the 2001 report required quite a bit of tinme and
effort in collecting the data.

1: 20: 17 PM

CHAI R LEDOUX surm sed that the AJC went through the records [in
order to prepare the 2001 report] because attorneys were not
submtting the data. She questioned what it would take in the
way of law, or a budget, to enforce the attorneys to submt
dat a. She also questioned who wuld be in charge of
[ enforcenent].

1: 20: 42 PM

M5. DIPIETRO in response to Chair LeDoux, stated an issue is
that there is no enforcenent nechanism in the |aw She
i ndicated she did not know what an enforcement nechani sm could
be, and reiterated that when the AJC sent letters and remn nders
it only achieved a 50 percent conpliance rate.

1:21:11 PM

VICE CHAIR KELLER questioned whether the AJC would be able to
devi se sonme incentive ideas and actually make noney instead of
cost noney and indicated there was no enforcenent suggestion,
but rather a suggestion to change the | aw

1:21: 44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN questioned what the data would show
regarding the inpact of the tort reformlegislation.

MS. DI PIETRO responded that the AJC perforned a study of tort
jury verdicts (appendix to the [2001] report) and subsequent to
realizing there were not many large tort jury verdicts, it
shifted its focus to the idea of settlenent. She explained that
the hypothesis being that because there are large settlenents
paid out by insurance conpanies, this inpacts the cost of
i nsurance and causes the cost of insurance to go up and the

avai lability of insurance to go down. The Departnent of
Commerce, Community, and Economc Devel opnent, D vision of
| nsurance, and the AJC attenpted to answer what effect, if any,

the settlenment of civil cases is having on the availability and
cost of insurance.

1: 23: 41 PM

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -7- February 20, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN asked what the studi es reveal ed.

M5. DIPIETRO offered that the Division of Insurance issued a
couple of reports in its effort to conply with that request and
was unabl e to conclude one way or the other.

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN surmised that the theory of tort reform
was that there were jury verdicts in the mllions of dollars
driving up insurance costs, but the studies of jury verdicts in
Al aska actually showed there were not huge jury verdicts.

M5. DI PIETRO answered "that is correct, in the nenp and the
report, yes."

1: 24: 26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN further questioned what the research
performed in the years following tort reform reveal ed regarding
settl enents.

M5. DI PI ETRO explained that the 2001 report contains the nost
conplete information on settlenents which revealed "not all that
many | arge settlements.”

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN asked whether settlenents were higher or
| oner than jury verdicts.

M5. DI Pl ETRO responded that she could not recall, and reiterated
that the data was only 50 percent of the cases.

1: 25: 33 PM

VICE CHAIR KELLER noted that the description of the settlenent
or judgnent is only one aspect of the information to be
report ed. He related that the other things erased, should the
law be repealed, is information regarding the court civi
justice processes, case processi ng i nformation, and
characteristics of the litigation and parties. For exanple, he
said he would be interested in how many civil cases were
frivol ous, how much court tine is taken up in civil litigation
what percentage, and what the information is based upon w thout
the [other 50 percent] data.

1: 26: 31 PM

HOUSE JUD COWM TTEE - 8- February 20, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt proposed comittee
substitute (CS) for HB 83, Version 29-LS0414\H, Wallace, 2/5/15,
as the working docunent. There being no objection, Version H
was before the conmttee for discussion.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG surm sed that the enforcenent mechani sm
could be grounds for discipline such as an individual violating
acivil rule in statute.

M5. DIPIETRO clarified that it would be discipline for the
attorneys through the Al aska Bar Association, but this law also
applies to unrepresented litigants.

1: 28: 14 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG, in reference to the M. Jacobus
supporting letter in each nenber's packet, said it reads that
this law costs attorney time and that nost plaintiff |awers
work on a contingency basis. The defense bar is generally on an
hourly basis, so the <clock would run for the <clients in
preparation of these reports, he renmarked.

M5. DIPIETRO replied "correct.™
1: 28: 43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG requested an estimate of the anount of
time spent filling out a report with the hourly rate.

M5. DIPIETRO replied that the formwas streamlined to nmake it as
easy as possible in order to evaluate the mninum anmount of
information in the best nmanner possible. She offered that she
had received an email from a law firm suggesting it was a
bur den.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG pointed out that the bill repeals
certain rules of court. He opined the protocol in nmatters of
comty ... when dealing with a change of a court rule would be

to request the court systemto repeal its rule.

M5. DI PI ETRO advi sed she could not respond to the protocol, but
the rules require an attorney to certify they submtted the
information to the AJC, or promulgated as a way to inplenment the
statute. She deferred the response to Ms. Nancy Meade.

1: 31: 08 PM

HOUSE JUD COWM TTEE - 9- February 20, 2015



CHAI R LEDOUX asked whether the law requiring reporting was
enacted after tort reformlegislation.

MS. DI Pl ETRO responded "that is correct.”

CHAI R LEDOUX questioned how a study would be perforned when the
information is available after [the | aw was enact ed].

1: 31: 50 PM

M5. DI PIETRO articulated that the AJC does not have base |ine
data so it could not determne whether prior to tort reform
settlements were a certain anmount or after tort reform
settlenments were a certain anount. She said the thought was
that the AJC could report that immediately after tort reform
things were a certain way, and five years |later had changed, and
ten years |later had changed again. She remarked it would not be
the type of analysis to prove a causation as it would just be a
correlation

1: 32: 30 PM

VICE CHAIR KELLER said that part of the AJC s responsibility is
of fering reconmendations to judges, and he asked whether any of
t he non-conpliant attorneys becane judges and asked Ms. DiPietro
to report back.

M5. DIPIETRO replied "I actually do not know the answer to that
guestion. "

1: 33: 03 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN noted that part of the rule was anending
either the court rules or attorney rules relating to attorney
client privilege and whether or not disclosing this information
violated the attorney client privilege, particularly relating to
settlenments. He asked whether anyone tested that question in
court, whether lawers were unwilling to report because they
believe it is an attorney-client violation.

M5. DI PIETRO responded that her knowl edge no one has ever
chal l enged that issue in court. She said she has heard that
some attorneys object to the idea of disclosing the information
on that ground, but described her statenent as hearsay.

1: 34: 25 PM

HOUSE JUD COWM TTEE -10- February 20, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN referred to Representative Keller's
guestion of sitting judges who, when in practice, had conplied
every tine, sonetines, or never.

M5. DI PI ETRO advi sed the AJC would have to go back to the court
and obtain the list of cases that had been dism ssed or settled
and determne who the attorneys were and whether a report was
submtted. "That would be quite the tricky research project.”

VICE CHAIR KELLER advised Representative Canman that he could
work it out whether he wanted the information, but his question
was "rhetorical" because he believes it was ignored.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG called the commttee's attention to AS
09.68.130(b), which is the statute that will be repeal ed under
the bill, which read:

(b) The information received by the council under (a)
of this section is confidential. This restriction does
not prevent the disclosure of summaries and statistics
in a manner that does not allow the identification of
particul ar cases or parties.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG offered that many settled civil cases
are confidential, but are not confidential as to statistics.

1: 36: 50 PM

NANCY MEADE, General Counsel, Central Ofice, Ofice of the
Adm nistrative Director, Alaska Court System responded to
Representative Guenberg that the |egislature does have the
right to ~change court rules of practice and procedure
constitutionally, and that it takes place several tinmes per
sessi on. She opined it is an appropriate exercise of the
| egislature's authority, and in this instance, those rules are
in the Alaska Rules of Court solely due to the passage of the
statute. In the event the statute and court rules are repeal ed
it would not be problematic from the court's point of view to
al so repeal the court rules, she expl ai ned.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG opined that if the |egislature changed
it to a request of court, it would not be a rule change and
woul d not require two-thirds vote.

IVS. MEADE responded that Legi sl ative Legal and Research

Services, who deals with statutory changes, always checks to
determ ne whether there would at l|east be an indirect rule

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -11- February 20, 2015



anendnent, if not a direct one. She stated it is their call as
to whether statutory changes do inpact rules.

VI CE CHAI R KELLER opened public testinony.

1:39:24 PM

BREWSTER JAM ESON, Attorney, Lane Powell LLC, said he has been
practicing civil litigation for 31 years in Alaska and noted
that the |aw does not acconplish nmuch in the way of useful
information, but it does place a burden on practitioners. In

terns of settlement information, the data is of cases in the
court system not cases that are settled before they go to
court. He opined that tort reform acconplished nuch of what it
set out to acconplish and has had a significant inpact on his
practice in terns of the certainty it brought in areas that were
uncertain before passage. He said that tort reform made it
easier to resolve and settle cases and predict outcones. He
hi ghlighted that there are factors determ ning the dollar anount
cases settle for, and what juries award in the way of verdicts.
It is expensive and difficult to collect data that doesn't tell
much about the cases, or whether tort reform was or was not
good, should or should not continue, or is fair or unfair, he
expl ai ned. He remarked he fully supports the repeal of this
provision and the bill.

1: 45: 20 PM

KEN JACOBUS, Attorney, Law Ofices of Kenneth P. Jacobus,
paraphrased the followi ng statenent [ ori gi nal punctuati on
provi ded] :

As Chairman of the Judiciary Conmittee, you should be
able to do sonething about this abomnation that
continues to exist in the A aska Statutes. | have
encl osed the nobst recent Resolution of the Anchorage
Bar Association directed at this matter. Every year
since 2003 through 2010, simlar resolutions were
adopted by the Anchorage Bar Association and the
Al aska Bar Association. The Legislature has continued
to ignore this request, so we finally gave up.

The enclosed resolution lists a lot of the reasons
that the statute is bad. At the present tine, these
reports mnust be nade. Many of the attorneys do not
followthis law. | think that a ot of them don’t even
know about it. Those that do bill their clients or

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -12- February 20, 2015



absorb the cost as an administrative cost. Nothing is
done with the reports by the State because it has no
need of the information.

| have enclosed sonme additional information. In 2001
t he Judi ci al Counci | itself recommended t he
elimnation of the automatic reporting requirenent. It
desired to retain the right to collect information if
it needed to do so in the future. It prepared a draft
of a bill that would acconplish this result. Copies of
the relevant information is encl osed.

My personal preference would be to repeal AS 09.68. 130
conpletely. However, if the Judicial Council wants to

retain the right to collect information, | have no
real problem Wiile it has collected information for
15 years since it published its only report, | do not
assurme that it will collect information in the future

unless there is a real purpose in doing so.

Repealing this statute would |essen a useless and
maj or burden on Al askan attorneys and clients If the
State wants to collect information in the future, it
is free to do so.

MR. JACOBUS advised that prior to tort reform there was an
assunption that verdicts were too high, and attorneys were paid
too nmuch. The AJC study showed there are not a nunber of [|arge
jury verdicts in Alaska, or large settlenments, and attorneys are
not being paid huge amounts of noney. He referred to page 1,
lines 6-9, AS 09.68.130(a), which read:

(a) Except as provided in (c) of this section, the
Al aska Judicial Council shall periodically collect and
evaluate information relating to the resolution of
civil litigation ...

MR. JACOBUS suggested the word "shall" mandatory, should be
changed to "nmay" discretionary.

VICE CHAIR KELLER referred to Version H, and explained that it
deletes that entire section as the |anguage now reads "AS

09.68.130 is repealed.”

1: 50: 12 PM

HOUSE JUD COWM TTEE -13- February 20, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN noted the commttee substitute (CS) does
away with the authority to collect any information at all and
asked whether M. Jacobus was in favor of the CS

MR. JACOBUS advised he is in support of the CS and does not
believe the Al aska Bar Association would be very happy being the
enforcenent nmechani sm "It can't deal wth thousands of
di sciplinary conplaints because attorneys do not file their
required reports,"” he expressed.

1:51: 26 PM

SARAH  BADTEN, At t or ney, G oh, Eggers, LLC, stated she
whol eheartedly supports repealing the statute as her practice is
in contract law and contract principle where she sues over a
lien foreclosure or paynent of noney. She enphasized that
i ndi vidual s pay the noney that is owed and the case is dism ssed
so it is not reflective of any useful information to the AJC or
the |egislature. She remarked that she deals with costs that
are transferred back to the borrower or owner. She attenpts to
keep costs down, but it is part of her time and she charges her
clients who then pass that cost through to the ower. She said
she would like to see the statute repealed as it is archaic and
costs unnecessary tinme and noney.

VICE CHAIR KELLER cl osed public testinony after ascertaining no
one further wi shed to testify.

1:54: 28 PM
The commttee took a brief at ease.

VI CE CHAI R KELLER passed the gavel to Chair LeDoux and the bil
was held in commttee.

HB 15- CREDI TS FOR Tl VE SERVED/ GOOD TI ME

1:54.:51 PM

CHAI R LEDOUX announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO. 15, "An Act relating to credits toward a sentence
of inprisonnent and to good tinme deductions.”

1:56:12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to adopt committee substitute (CS)
for HB 15, Version 29-LS0102\N, Gardner/Martin, 2/19/15 as the

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -14- February 20, 2015



wor ki ng docunent . There being no objection, Version N was

before the commttee.

1:56: 23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TAMM E W LSON paraphrased the follow ng sponsor

statenent [original punctuation provided]:

The state of Alaska faces rising incarceration costs,
gr ow ng correctional popul ati ons, and decl i ni ng
financial resources. To face this challenge, Al aska
must seek out alternatives which nmaximzes state
financial resources while providing rehabilitative
services for incarcerated individuals. It is the
purpose of HB 15 to grant credit against a sentence of
i mprisonnment and award good tine deductions for tine
spent in a treatnent program in a private residence,
or under el ectronic nonitoring.

It is the mssion of Al aska Departnent of Corrections

(DOC) to provide secure confinenent, reformative
pr ogr amns, and provide a process of supervi sed
community reintegration to enhance the safety of our
conmuni ti es. Under current statutes, a convicted

prisoner is entitled to a deduction of one-third of
the term of inprisonnent under good tine deductions if
the prisoner follows the rules of the correctional
facility in which the prisoner is confined. However,
if a prisoner spends any tine in a treatnment program
or while under el ectronic nonitoring they are
ineligible. The penalization for seeking treatnent,
mai ntai ning enploynent, or starting the process of
reintegration into the comunity stands in stark
contrast to the goals outlined by DOC

A diverse range of prograns are available to prisoners
to facilitate an i ndi vidual’s reintegration.
El ectronic Mnitoring (EM is a tool utilized by DOC
that provides cost effective supervision of offenders
while reducing recidivism The EM program allows
qualified incarcerated individuals to serve tine at
home while adhering to the program conditions.
Qualified individuals can gain access to conmmunity-
based treatnent, maintain enploynent, access diverse
medi cal treatnent, perform community service work, and
begin the process of reintegration. The ability to
grant credit against a sentence of inprisonnment for

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -15- February 20, 2015



time spent under supervision of electronic nonitoring
or within a treatnent program can potentially save the
state of Alaska over twelve mllion dollars a year.
The State of Al aska has an opportunity to
substantially save noney while increasing Al askans
access to comunity-based treatnents, ability to
mai ntain enploynent, and reduce recidivism HB 15
pronotes the mssion of DOC by encouraging the use of
reformative prograns while fostering community based
reintegration.

Thank you for your support of HB 15.

1:58:56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON offered an Electronic Mnitoring (EM
power point presentation and advised that the bill does not
change eligibility. Requi rements of eligibility are based upon

the Departnment of Corrections (DOC) recomendations and the
court in determning the type of nmonitoring an individual should
have, she expressed. Currently, the seven requirenents by DOC
are as follows: 1. Release date is less than three years. 2. No
current or prior sex offense related convictions. 3. No current
donmestic violence related convictions. 4. Reside in and work in
t he Anchorage, Fairbanks, G rdwod, Kenai, Ketchi kan, Mt-Su, or
Sitka areas. 5. Land-line phone with basic service and |ong

di stance carrier. 6. Must be able to provide a "clean" urine
sanple (no prescription narcotics or street drugs.) 7. No
weapons, alcohol, or controlled substances in the hone. She
stated she is hopeful the program will grow to cover nore areas

t han t he above nenti oned areas.
1: 59: 51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON expl ained that within the EM 24/7 program
shoul d an individual take a drink of alcohol, the nonitor picks
it up and data is downloaded at the end of the week. The
approxi mate monitor cost is $105 for seven days versus over $150
per day. DOC has an EM program and there are private conpanies
with nonitors, she renarked. In FY14 a total of 2,034
i ndi vi dual s parti ci pated in DCC s EM program and the
participants served a total of 134,585 days, which averages
about 66 days per year. Although, if good tinme deductions were
provided with the 2014 participants, it would have reduced the
days by 44,862. She described good tinme as not only a nmechani sm
to show behavi or change when incarceration, but actually "a step
down. " She related that parole is to help individuals find a

HOUSE JUD COWM TTEE - 16- February 20, 2015



job or a place to live but is currently not [effective] because
there are many prisoners per parole officer. This program puts
an individual in their own setting, receiving treatnent, and an
opportunity to abide by the rules. She pointed out that should
the of fender not obey the rules they will serve the remainder of
their time in jail. She suggested encouraging those with "these
ki nds of issues"” to undergo treatnent rather than penalize them

2:02: 30 PM

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON pointed to the chart on page 9 which she
described as a potential cost savings per individual. The
intent is to incentivize a programcurrently in existence which,
she noted, is that an individual in pre-trial receives credit
for sitting there. "I go and say |I'm going to get treatnent
while I'm waiting to go to trial, | don't. That just to ne
seens very backwards to be able to do that,"” she related. She
noted that pages 9-10 indicate nore savings, and page 11 depicts
a reduction of 31 percent, with significant reduction across all

age groups and of fenses. She opined that the reduction is due
to individuals living in their owm comunity versus taking them
conpletely out of it. She pointed to page 12, "genera

recidivisnt, "EM recidivism and "general recidivism |ess EM
recidivisnt from FY2007- FY2011. Page 13, is the Bl TAD device
which has proven effective in Al aska and, she said, that 90
percent of Alaska's offenders/inmtes have alcohol or illegal

drugs involved in their crines. She noted there is an 18
percent recidivism rate for offenders who serve their entire
sentence on the EM program and were released for tinme served

She pointed out that the state can save $12 nillion if the
program is utilized by individuals already enrolled in
el ectronic nonitoring during FY2014. However, if an individua

is currently on the EM program this bill does not affect them

She reiterated that EM has been successfully tested in
Anchorage, Kotzebue, Bethel, Palner/Wsilla, Fairbanks, and
Norre.

2:04:53 PM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON advised it was never her intent that the
program would be solely private residence, and if the offender
commts another crime while on EM they will not receive tine
served or good tinme. Representative WIson commented that HB 15
is not ready to be passed out of commttee today as she has
guestions on the statute. She asked "should we just offer it to
those going into a treatnent program actually a residential
treatment program or the 24/7 program that we are hearing would

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -17- February 20, 2015



not be eligible under the current way this bill is witten
because it is not a residential treatnent.” However, she noted,
the individual being nonitored 24/7, iIs holding a job
perform ng according to DOC s requirenents, and is outside of a
treatment program There is a question that once an individua
is sentenced, can they stay on the sanme nonitor versus a
different nonitor where they will have to check in with sonmeone
random y. She described that scenario as being difficult when
the individual has a job and yet with the EM device, the
individual is nmonitored 24/7 and does not have to |eave work to
be tested. She stated that as far as the incentivize treatnent
portion of the bill that is as far as she plans to go. She
opined that currently under HB 15 an individual in jail and not
currently on EM would not be eligible. She further opined that
the nore tinme an individual stays in jail w thout the right kind
of treatnment, or able to get back into society, "having that
step down," the nore likely the individual is to stay within the
system She described the goal as getting Al askans out of jail
able to live in society, and have a famly.

2:09: 00 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked the anount of time being spent
bet ween arrest and sentencing. He said he had heard the pre-
trial tine was large, and the Alaska State Constitution
guarantees a speedy trial.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON offered that if an individual is sitting
jail waiting for trial, and found innocent, "you ve got tinme
banked, because you served and you didn't have to serve."

2:09: 57 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked that Representative WIson bring the
information to the commttee of the anpbunt of tinme and the
nunber of people that are in this position, and the nunber of
i ndi vidual s and the amount of banked tine. He expressed that he
would like to know why she backed away from house arrest as he
understood that conditions of bail sonmetinmes include third party
custodi ans with the individual |ocked in house arrest.

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON stated "that was never our intent,
Representative Keller, it was kind of an accident."” The intent
was always for electronic nonitoring, she said she took the part
of the statute that |ooked "like they took just that part out."
She noted that a court case decided if an individual is in their
residence [wth a 3rd party custodian] and not allowed to go

HOUSE JUD COWM TTEE - 18- February 20, 2015



where they would like, it is not the sane type of nonitoring as
el ectronic nonitors. She added that nost of the people in jai
are due to drugs and alcohol, and courts have been concerned
that the third party custodian is not nonitoring as well as they
shoul d.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER said there are individuals that take being
rel eased into custody very serious, as it changes the life of
the person that takes it seriously and in house arrest. He
suggested that the appropriate response nay be to do sonething
to ensure that the terns of bail are net rather than just
ignoring that arena and allowing it to get weaker. He likes the
idea of including this into the bill and would like to hear
reasons why not.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON deferred to "bright people behind nme," and
noted she is not an attorney.

2:12: 51 PM

CHAIR LEDOUX referred to Representative WIson's statenent
regardi ng "banked tinme" and asked for clarification that in the
event an individual is acquitted and has served tinme, that tine
can be used the next time the individual is arrested.

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON said "it is ny wunderstanding that is
true.” Literally, she remarked, an individual has served tine
but has been acquitted so later on the individual can use it if
arrested again.

2:13: 50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN comented that he was not aware of
"banking." He opined that it is comon that a pre-trial release
is not as restrictive as a house arrest post sentencing, and it
is fairly common for an individual to negotiate receiving jai
credit before sentencing so it is part of the pre-trial release,
he said. In ternms of speedy trial, he suspects that speedy
trial has been waived nore than once.

CHAI R LEDOQUX opened public testinony.
2:16: 06 PM
BILLY HOUSER, Probation Oficer, Division of Probation and

Parole, Departnent of Corrections, said he is the program
manager for the Departnent of Corrections Electronic Mnitoring

HOUSE JUD COWM TTEE -19- February 20, 2015



and is not clear as to the changes made in the drafts. However,
good tine is the key issue and part of Sec. 4 [Version 29-
LS0102\E] deals with good behavior while a prisoner is confined
at a correctional facility and noted it is problematic for the
el ectronic nonitoring program He said the draft he reviewd
woul d have been fine and woul d have resol ved those issues if the
| ast portion, " ordered by the court and the defendant has
not commtted a crime while in the residential treatnent program
or under electronic nonitoring." He indicated that renoval of
the | ast sentence could achieve the goals of this |egislation,
which is both rehabilitation and reducing the anmount of
i ndi vidual s in custody. He pointed out that the first three
sections regarding sentencing and pretrial credit have a |ot of
pr obl ens.

CHAIR LEDOUX noted that M. Houser nmay not be |ooking at the
correct draft.

2:19:39 PM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON offered that M. Houser is |ooking at the
commttee substitute that was "out" l|ast night. She remarked
the section is problematic which is why it is no |onger part of
the bill.

MR. HOUSER said he now understands that everything was renoved
except for the prior section 4, which addresses AS 33.20.010(c).

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON responded that Sec. 1, AS 12.55.027(d) was

in the original bill. She explained that "in a private
residence” is renoved so it reads "for time spent under
el ectronic nonitoring” and added the follow ng: "if the
defendant has not commtted a crine while wunder electronic
nmoni toring. " She further responded that AS 33.20.010(c) was
anended to read "a prisoner shall be awarded a good tine

deduction under (a) of this section for any period spent in a
resi denti al treatment  program or while under electronic
monitoring if the defendant has not conmitted a crine while
under electronic nonitoring."

MR. HOUSER stated that from an el ectronic nonitoring standpoint
and a restorative justice philosophy standpoint, allow ng the
courts to give sentence credit to an individual in a pretrial
status is very problematic. Currently, he stated, the bail
conpanies are non-regulated and are in a for-profit position in
that when an individual does not have the noney to pay for bai

and electronic nonitoring, the individual wll not receive those

HOUSE JUD COWM TTEE - 20- February 20, 2015



servi ces. The program rules are "all over the map" and in
essence defendants seek continuance after continuance and waive
their right to a speedy trial. He described a scenario of
reviewing an electronic nonitoring application for an individua
who had served three and one-half years to a private bai

conpany on electronic nonitoring. The individual planned to
take a plea agreenent where he would serve a three years flat
time sentence. This would be the individual's third felony

conviction, presunptive under sentencing guidelines, and 1in
essence, he expressed, if the court were to allow the individua
credit for the time he was out on bail he would not have served
a single day in jail for a conviction that requires three years.
M. Houser reiterated there is "so nuch" disparative treatnent
involved that it is very problematic. He related that judges
are not famliar enough wth correctional interstate conpact
rules and regulations for actual correctional facilities and
probation and parole and were giving credit to individuals
living out of state with a private bail conmpany to "serve their

sent ence. " The individual then receives jail credit for it,
when in fact, the individual should have been processed through
the interstate conpact for corrections, he expressed. He noted
that if that process is not net, or regulated, the state is
subject to civil penalties. In essence, he remarked, AS
33.20.010(c) would be served in helping to reduce the nunber of
i ndi vi dual s incarcerated. Realistically, he commented, DOC has
the ability right now to place pretrial prisoners on electronic
nmonitoring house arrest as a designation process. The only

thing that keeps DOC from currently doing that is the good tine
credit statute. He explained that if an individual is placed on
pretrial, the individual does not get the good tinme but, if DOC
designated them to pretrial, they would. The goal could be
achi eved just by amendi ng AS 33.20.010(c).

2:27: 21 PM

DOUGLAS  MOODY, Deputy Public Defender, Crim nal Di vi si on

Centr al Ofice, Publ i c Def ender Agency, Depart ment of
Adm ni stration, stated that electronic nonitoring is sufficient
both to protect the public and to provide the necessary
structure to reintegrate the individuals. The whole idea with
offenders in jail is because the state was mad at them about
their behavior, and not so nuch afraid of them The goal is
that they change their behavior and get them plugged back into

bei ng productive nenbers of society and, he said, HB 15 will do
t hat . Anyt hing that hel ps DOC expand its electronic nonitoring
program both post-trial and pre-trial, the public defender's
of fice supports. He opined it wuld benefit the public

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -21- February 20, 2015



defender's particular client base in that they have sliding
scales for their electronic nonitoring so that indigent
def endants can participate. Whereas M. Houser is correct, he
noted, that if it is totally left to the free market a |ot of
public defender clients can't get out because they can't pay the
fee. He then addressed the question about banking tinme and said
the tinme an individual spends in jail could only be credited to

the case the individual is in jail wupon. For exanple, he
expl ai ned, an individual does six nmonths on one case and is
acquitted, that tine is dead time and never counts again. He

further explained that the banking situation arises when there
are probation hearings and an individual may sit in jail waiting
for a probation revocation hearing for 60 days. The of f ender
finally appears in front of the judge and the judge revokes 30
days, so the individual has 30 days in the bank for the next
violation but on that case only, he expressed.

2:31:13 PM

RI CK SVOBODNY, Deputy Attorney Ceneral, Central Ofice, Crimna
Di vision, Departnent of Law, stated he would not be focusing so
much on electronic nonitoring or credit for jail tinme for an

i ndi vidual staying in their private residence. But rather
offered two concepts that sound a lot alike but are not the sane
at all. There is credit for tine served in pre-trial, which is
before an individual has been sentenced they can get credit for
time in jail, or credit for tinme in treatnment prograns. He
noted that what has been added wth this bill is credit for tine
on electronic nonitoring. He explained that the other concept
is good tinme credit where an individual has been sentenced to a
termin jail and to control the individual in jail, they receive

a reduction of one day for every three days served. Currently,
he said, an individual receives credit for time in pre-trial

when the individual actually is in jail. For example, if the
judge said bail is $100,000, and the individual cannot post
$100, 000 the individual may stay in jail unless there are other
conditions for their release. Every day an individual is in
jail they get credit for that tine. He paraphrased a 1980
Al aska Suprene Court decision that said, "if a court orders you
do sonething that is the functional equivalent of jail - that it
is like jail in many respects in pretrial. The i ndi vi dual
should get credit for that too." He noted two cases Lock v.

State of Alaska, 609 P.2d 539 (1980) and Nygren v. State of
Al aska, 658 P.2d 141 (Alaska App. 1983) that set out that
proposi tion. He opined that when a court orders an individual
pre-trial, as a condition of bail to a treatnment program the
i ndi vidual should receive credit as though sitting in jail.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -22- February 20, 2015



Al though, he said there were exanples of a treatnent program
being run outside of Anchorage for alcohol treatnent in a bar,
"Sgt. Preston's Lodge." The courts have granted credit for
showing up at the Departnment of Health & Social Services or an
entity designated by the Departnment of Health & Social Services
to take nedication that wasn't related to al cohol. Sone | udges
believe that was the functional equivalent of jail and were
gi ving people credit.

2:36:35 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if M. Svobodny was tal king about
good time, or credit for tinme served.

2:36:48 PM

MR. SVOBODNY responded that he was referring to conditions of
bail that are set by the court prior to trial, prior to
conviction, and credit for tinme actually served. The Court of
Appeals and the Al aska Suprenme Court were good about telling
judges that it doesn't count when the individual is out fishing.
He offered another exanple where an individual was released to
the custody of his nother. The individual cane to court and
said "that's like jail," and the court gave him credit of which
the Court of Appeals overturned, he noted. In 2007, the
| egi sl ature put standards into the |aw which becane AS 12.55. 027
credit for time served. The legislature decided if an
individual is in a treatnent program and it has restrictions
which the Court of Appeals and Suprene Court said are the
functional equivalent of jail, the individual receives one day
credit for every day in the program "You don't even need to
conplete the program but just for every day you ve been in it,
you get credit,” he said, and that is where AS 12.25.027 cones

in. He offered that he 1is not arguing that electronic
monitoring is not a good thing or a hel pful tool, but suggested
it is not the functional equivalent of jail. He described it as

being back to the old days, before standards for treatnent
progranms as no standards for EM have been inposed. He expl ai ned
that the legislature inposes standards for treatnent progranms in
that it had to be a legitinate treatnment program and a
representative of the program had to go to court and testify
that the individual was in their program He described the core
principle of Sec. 2, AS 12.55.027 as when an individual has

served tine in jail, or the functional equivalent of jail tineg,
the individual should receive credit and the question that
requires answering "is wearing an electronic bracelet the

functional equivalent of incarceration.”

HOUSE JUD COWM TTEE - 23- February 20, 2015



2:42: 34 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked M. Svobodny to nmake his |ast point
agai n.

MR. SVOBCODNY responded that he wll be losing a lot of
prosecutors due to the budget and he would rather have
individuals do less tine in jail, rather than have people who do

a good service |lose their jobs. He is not opposed, in general
to reducing the amount of tine sone individuals go to jail but,
he stated, "why don't we just call it that - let's commute
everyone by one-third of their tine instead of creating a |ega
fiction."

2:43: 43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG referred to Sec. 1, and stated it is
confusing due to the way it is currently drafted "may not," and
proposed the | anguage "shall grant credit."

MR. SVOBCDNY answered there is no need to change anything in AS
12.55.027 as it says "shall not grant credit" is for the
previ ous exanpl es. That is why in 2007, the legislature said
"they shall not grant credit."

2:45:36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that the current |anguage is that
"the court may not grant credit [against a sentence of
inprisonnment] for tinme spent in a private residence ..." He
asked whet her there were any circunstances wherein an individual
shoul d be able to do that.

MR. SVOBCDNY replied in the event an individual is in the
functional equivalent of jail, then yes. If the court rel eases
an individual on his own recognizance, and orders that he live
at his residence and not |eave the room that would be the
functional equivalent of incarceration.

2:47:18 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG surmsed that M. Svobodny would
support allowing credit for time in a private residence if it is

t he functional equivalent of incarceration.

MR. SVOBODNY responded "yes."

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 24- February 20, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG questioned whether there were any
ci rcunst ance under which credit should be granted for electronic
noni t ori ng.

MR. SVOBODNY replied that it is hard for him to think of a
circunstance wherein all the court is requiring is that an
i ndi vi dual wear an ankle bracelet. He said he can't conceive
anyone thinking that is the sane as being in jail.

2:49: 03 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN said M. Svobodny prefaced his conments
that up until 2007 when AS 12.25.027 was passed the courts did a
good job of developing a comon |aw of what constituted the
functional equivalent of jail for purposes of what is known as a
legal matter is Nygren credit.

MR, SVOBODNY answered "yes," if you nean the appellate courts.

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN noted that since 2007, there has been
considerable additional litigation about Nygren credit. He
further noted that the old common |aw of Nygren credit versus
the statutory law turned out to not perfectly match Nygren
credit. He offered that the phil osophical question is whether
the state is better off trying to define this as a |egislature
by statute, or mght the state be better off by saying that the
courts are doing a good job developing this as common |aw and
adapting to nodern technology as it comes up. He asked whet her
the state would be better off getting out of the business of
defining this and let the courts continue to deal with it rather
than witing it as statute.

MR. SVOBODNY responded that it depends upon what the |egislature
woul d do. He said he knows what the courts have said, and woul d
the state give people credit for staying in their own hones and
wearing an ankle bracel et. He remarked that the discussion is
credit for tinme served and he has no problem with the appellate
court decisions if it starts wth Nygren credit for the
functionally equivalent of incarceration. He agreed wth
Representative Claman that there is an existing statute that is
alittle nore restrictive than where the courts were at the tine
AS 12.25.027 was passed. He described it as a nuance issue as
opposed to public policy issue.

2:52:35 PM

HOUSE JUD COWM TTEE - 25- February 20, 2015



CHAIR LEDOUX asked whether the legislature is in this
| egislative predicanent right now with this statute because
there are a few "off the wall" cases by the Superior Courts that
possi bly the Departnent of Law and |egislature reacted to. She
suggested the legislature consider going back to the system
especially now that common law is nore devel oped. Wth the
gui dance of the appellate courts, trial courts have a little
nore discretion to determne what the functional equivalent of
jail is, she said.

MR. SVOBODNY responded "Yes, we mght be better off." He opined
that the reason there were |ess than appropriate decisions by
the trial courts is that it is hard to predict wthout standards
whet her sonething is going to work or not. He referred to a
Juneau case wherein a defendant was found at a novie theater
with his girlfriend rather than being hone or at work. The
trial court determned that dinner and a date was not the sane
as being in jail. "If we put the resources into fighting about
it, both fromthe defense point of view and the state's point of
view, we're just fine with the appellate court decisions."

2:55: 04 PM

CHAIR LEDOUX surmsed that rather than a statute currently
reading "the courts may not grant," that perhaps the best
situation would be a statute with a nunber of guidelines the
courts shoul d consi der when maki ng deci si ons.

MR. SVOBCDNY responded in the affirmative and advised that was
done in 2007 in (a), (b), (c), the mpjor place that people were
getting credit was treatnent prograns.

2:55:55 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d subsection (c) uses the concept of
functional equival ent and provi des guidelines.

MR. SVOBODNY responded that Sec. 3 is credit for good tinme and
is an entirely different concept. That is a tool as to how the
Department of Corrections causes people to behave follow ng
sentencing where an individual is given one-third off of the
sentence then, he explained, should the prisoner cause problens
DOC potentially takes that tinme away. After fulfilling the
sentence and the individual is out on probation or parole and is
using electronic nonitoring, the individual receives credit for
good time if their probation or parole is being revoked. He
opined that if the individual is not in custody, it is a "bigger

HOUSE JUD COWM TTEE - 26- February 20, 2015



legal fiction" to say an individual should be given one day for
each three days served so the individual wll behave. He
rem nded the commttee that electronic nonitoring is a device to
help in public protection and it has the ancillary effect of
keeping people from breaking the |aw He expressed that
electronic nonitoring does not stop people from commtting
crines as it is not a panacea, it is a tool.

3: 00: 04 PM

CHAI R LEDOUX announced HB 15 is held over and public testinony
remai ns open.

3:00: 52 PM
ADJ QURNIVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Judi ciary Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at 3:00 p. m

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -27- February 20, 2015



